UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

—_—

In the Matter of:
HUDALJ 08-029-pF

)
)
)
) HUDALJ 08-019-pPF
Miguel A, Vega, ) OGC Case No. 08-3466-pF
Gary M. Stanco, ) OGC Case No. 08-3499_pf
Joseph N, Giuliano, -~ ) OGC Case No. 08-3500-pF
Elizabeth Cortez, ) OGC Case No. 08-3551-PF
Caroline Carouthers )
Maria Carmen Thomas, )
)
)

Respondents

DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND ORDER
I Procedural Histo
==2tedural History

On February 19, 2008, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD,” or “the Department”) instituted an action designated as HUDALJ 08-029-pF by issuing
a Complaint to Joseph N. Giuliane (“Respondent,” or “Giuliano”) and two other individuals,!
charging Respondent with 104 violations of the Program Fraug Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31
US.C. §§ 3801-3812, as implemented by 24 C.F.R. part 28.° Speciﬁcally, the Complaint
alleges that, at all times relevant hereto, Respondent was an owner, officer, director, and/or
Mmanager of First Source F inancial USA, Inc. (“FSF”), formerly a lender approved by the FHA
[Federal Housing Administration} to participate in 4 UD/FHA’s “Single Family Mortgage
Insurance Program.” Under such Program, to encourage the issuance of mortgage loans to low
and moderate income borrowers, HUD/FHA can provide lenders with mortgage loan insurance

Stanco. Messrs, Vega and Stanco filed answers to the Complaint and the administrative
proceeding against them s currently pending. By Order dated May 1 2008, the matter
designated as 4 UDALJ 08-029-pf Was consolidated with the Mmatter designated as H UDALYJ 08-
O19-PF, which is also pending against Miguel A. Vega as well ag three other named respondents,

2008. See, HUD’s Motion for Defaujt Judgment Y1and at Exhibit | thereto.



under Section 203(b) of the National Housing Act, 12 U.S.C. § 1709(b). The Complaint further
asserts that between May 15, 2002 and April 29, 2004, in order to acquire HUD/FSA msurance
for 104 different FSF-issued mortgage loans, Respondent submitted or caused to be submitted
one or more false statements of material fact to HUD. Such false statements, contained in an
“Addendum to Uniform Residential Loan Application” (HUD Form 92900-A FSF) submitted to
HUD in connection with each loan by Respondent, certified that the information contained in the
Uniform Residential Loan Application (URLA) was directly obtained from the borrower by an
“employee or duly authorized agent” of the lender (FSF) and that the lender “has not paid any . . .
consideration of any type, directly or indirectly, to any party in connection with this transaction
except as permitted under HUD regulations and administrative instructions.” HUD alleges that
Respondent Giuliano knew or had reason to know that the statements were false because, inter
alia, on FSF’s behalf, he had previously executed an Independent Contractor Agreement with the
person who directly obtained the information from the borrowers on the 104 loans, and such

authorized FHA loan origination entity. These false statements were material, HUD asserts,
because it would not have insured the loans had it known that the loans were ori ginated by an

unapproved entity being paid impermissible fees.

Having received no response to the Complaint from Respondent Giuliano, on April 29,
2008, HUD filed a Motion for Default Judgment (“Motion”) together with a copy of the
Complaint, and other exhibits and attachments, in accordance with 24 C. F.R. §§ 26.39 and
28.30(b). The Motion requests that default judgment be entered against Respondent Giuliano
and that he be found liable for the $608,000 penalty proposed.

To date, Respondent has not submitted a response to the Complaint or the Motion.

Il. Relevant Statutory and Regulatory Provisions

Section 3802(a)(2) of the Program Fraud Civi] Remedies Act ( PFCRA) provides in

¥ Pursuant to the F ederal Civil Monetary Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, Pub.
L. 101-410, and Section 31001 of the Debt Collection Act, Pub. . 104-134, the maximum civil
penalty which may be imposed for such violations was increased from $5,500 to $6,500 for
claims accruing or statements submitted after April 17,2003, See, 24 C.F.R. § 30.60(c); See

also, 68 Fed. Reg. 12788,
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relevant part that -

Any person who makes, presents, or submits, o causes to be made, presented, or
submitted, a written statement that —
(A) the person knows or has reason to know —
(i) asserts a material fact whjch is false, fictitious or frauduient;

* * *

(C) contains or is accompanied by an express certification or affirmation
of the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the Statement,

shall be subject to . . . a civi] penalty of not more than [$5.500] for each such
Statement,

31US.C. § 3802(a)(2): 24 CFR.§ 28.10(b)(1)).
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Department when such statement g actually made to an agent, fiscal intennediary, or other entity,

For the purposes of the PFCRA, the term "statement” means

“any representation, certification, affirmation, document, record, or accounting or
bookkeeping entry made--
* * *
(B) with respect to ( including relating to eligibility for)--

(1) a contract with, or a bid or proposal for 3 contract with; or

(ii) a grant, loan, or benefit from,
an authority . . . if the United States Government provides any portion of the
money or property under such contract or for such grant, loan, or benefit, or if the
Government wij reimburse such . party for any portion of the money or
property under such contract or for such grant, loan, or benefit, . .

US.C. § 3801(a)(9): 24 C.FR.§285.

-, acting for or on behalf of HUD. See, 31 U.S.C. § 3801(c); 24 CFR.§ 28.10(b){2)~(3).

The PFCRA s 3 strict liability Statute, no proof of specific intent to defraud Is required to

establish liability, and the standard of proof jg the “preponderance of the evidence, See, 31

US.C. ¢ 3803(f), 24 CFR. § 28.10¢d).

HUDg Jurisdiction to administra{ively commence and conduyct actions under PF CRA

with hearings presided over by an Administrative Law Judge is provided by 3] US.C. §§
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38{}2(b), 3803(b), 3881(&){7), and 24 CFR, Parts 28 and 26 (subpart B).

Seven (7) days after service of the motion. 24 CFR. g 26.39(b). The Rules also provide that a
default shaj) constitute an admission of all facts alleged in the complaint and 4 waiver of the

that “[t]he penalty proposed in the complaint shall pe set (forth in the default order, .- and that 5
default order shall Constitute the “final agency action,” 24 C.FR. § 263 9(b) and (c).

111, Motion for Defaul¢
——2A lor Default

See, Complaint 4t 17-18. The Complaint States that copies of 24 C -R. Part 28 and Part 2¢,
Subpart B, were included with the Complaint.

B












19.

21.

(8]
b

The identity of the loan officer and mortgagee originating the mortgages at issue, the
accuracy of the information contained within the URLAs and addendums to the URLAs,
and the fact that each of the loans at issue was originated by an entity not-approved by
HUD, are facts material to HUDs decision to insure the loan.

HUD would not have insured the 104 loans had it known that the mortgages were
originated by a loan officer who Was not an employee or duly authorized agent of the

lender.

HUD would not have insured the 104 mortgage loans had it known that the lender was
paying a kickback, fee or consideration of any type, directly or indirectly, to the Mortgage
Originator in connection with the transaction, which was not permitted by HUD
regulations and administrative instructions.

For each of the 104 mortgage loans identified herein, HUD would not have insured the
mortgage loan had it known that the URLAs and Addendums to URLASs submitted, or
caused to be submitted to the Department by the Respondent in connection with such
mortgages, contained false information,

In regard to each of the 104 mortgage loans identified in the Complaint, Respondent
submitted or caused to be submitted to HUD a written statement containing or
accompanied by an express certification or affirmation of truthfulness falsely asserting
material facts, which he knew or had reason to know were false, in connection with

obtaining mortgage insurance thereon.

In regard to the mortgage loans identified in the Complaint, Respondent is hereby found
to have committed 104 violations of 31 U.S.C, § 3802(a)(2).

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3802(a)(2) and 24 C.F.R. § 28.10(b), HUD is entitled to a civil
penalty of $5,500 for each of the false statements submitted by Respondent on or before
April 17, 2003; and $6,500 for each of the false statements submitted by Respondent after

April 17, 2003,

DETERMINATION OF CIVIL PENALTY AMOUNT

Section 26.39(¢) of the applicable Rules provides in pertinent part that upon default:

The penalty proposed in the complaint shall be set forth in the
default order and shall be immediately due and payable by
respondent without further proceedings,
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24CFR.§ 26.39(c).

Section 3802 of PFCRA, 31 US.C §3801(a)2) (as adjusted by the Federal Civi]
Monetary Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990) and 24 C.FR. § 28.10(b) authorize
the assessment of a ctvil penalty of up to $5,500 for each violation of 31 U.S.C. N
3802(a)(2) that accrued prior to April 17, 2003 and $6,500 for any violations after that

Section 28.40(b) of the applicable Rules provides with regard to the factors to consider in
determining amount of penalties as follows:

In determining an appropriate amount of ¢jvi] penalties and assessments, the
administrative law Judge (ALJ) and, upon appeal, the Secretary shal] consider and
state in their opinions any mitigating or aggravating circumstances, Because of
the intangible costs of fraud, the expense Qf‘z'm/’esfzgatiﬂg. fraudulent conduct, and
the need for deterrence, ordinarily double damages and q significant civil penalty
should be imposed. The ALJ and the Secretary shall consider the following

(1) The number of false, fictitious, or fraudulent clajms or statements;

(2) The time period over which such claims or statements were made:

(3) The degree of the respondent's culpability with respect to the misconduct;

(4) The amount of money or the value of the property, services, or benefit falsely claimed;

(5) The value of the Government's actual loss as a result of the misconduct,
including foreseeable consequential damages and the cost of investigation;

(6) The relationship of the cjvi] penalties to the amount of the Government's loss;
health or safety, or public confidence in the management of Government programs

and operations, including particularly the impact on the intended beneficiaries of
such programs:

(8) Whether the respondent has engaged in a pattern of the same or similar misconduct;
(9) Whether the respondent attempted to conceal the misconduct:

(10) The degree to which the respondent has involved others in the misconduct or
in concealing it:
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(11) If the misconduct of employees or agents is imputed to the respondent, the
extent to which the respondent's practices fostered or attempted to preclude the misconduct;

(12) Whether the respondent cooperated in or obstructed an investi gation of the misconduct;
(13) Whether the respondent assisted in identi fying and prosecuting other wrongdoers;

(14) The complexity of the program or transaction, and the degree of the
respondent's sophistication with respect to it, including the extent of the
respondent's prior participation in the program or in similar transactions;

(15) Whether the respondent has been found, in any criminal, civil, or
administrative proceeding, to have engaged in similar misconduct or to have dealt
dishonestly with the Government of the United States or of a State, directly or indirectly;

(16) The need to deter the respondent and others from engaging in the same or
similar misconduct; and

(17) Any other factors that in any given case may mitigate or aggravate the
offense for which penalties and assessments are imposed.

Exhibit 3 attached to Complainant’s Motion sets forth in detail HUD'’s analysis of the
seventeen factors as they apply to Respondent’s actions.

Having reviewed the Department’s penalty determination, I concur with its detailed
analysis of the severity of the offenses and its reasoning behind the penalty amount
assessed. Over approximately a two year period, Respondent knowingly “franchised out”
his FHA approval number to a non-FHA approved entity and/or person (the Mortgage
Originator) and profited richly from the 104 FHA insured mortgage loans (totaling in
excess of $11.6 million dollars) wrongly issued as a result. In doing so Respondent
undermined FHA’s efforts to insure the financial and business integrity of the entities it
approves and with whom it does business. By his actions, Respondent also gave the
unapproved mortgage originator access to personal identifying information on a multitude
of loan applicants putting them at risk of loss and undermining the integrity of HUDs
proprietary program maintaining the confidentiality of such data. Respondent involved
others in making, submitting and concealing these false and fraudulent statements to and
from HUD. The actions lead to unnecessary expense on the part of the Government to
investigate his unlawful conduct and undermined a government scheme to provide
affordable mortgage loans to low and moderate income buyers. Respondent’s actions are
clearly egregious enough to warrant the maximum allowable civil penalty. Finally, it is
noted that although given an opportunity to do so, Respondent has proffered no evidence
to support any mitigation of the proposed penalty.

10




HUD submits that the violations warrant a maximum aggregated penalty of $608,000
against Respondent Giuliano, irrespective of joint and several liability of other
individuals.

In this instance, however, considering the continued participation of other parties to this
proceeding, the assessment of the penalty to be issued against Respondent Giuliano will
be stayed until resolution of liability and/or settlement of the other respondents in this
proceeding.

11




ORDER

1. For failing to respond to the Complaint in a timely manner as indicated above, and upon
motion filed, Respondent is hereby found in DEFAULT.

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3803, Respondent is found to have violated the Program Fraud
Civil Remedies Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3802(a)(2), in 104 instances as enumerated above and is
subject to assessment of a civil penalty in the amount of $5,500 for each such violation
occurring prior to April 17, 2003, and a civil penalty in the amount of $6,500 for each
violation occurring after that date. Respondent is subject to assessment of the total
aggregate proposed penalty of $608,000.

=

3. The imposition of said penalty against Respondent Giuliano is STAYED until resolution
of liability and/or settlement of this matter with respect to the other Respondents in this

proceeding.

Susan L. Biro
Chief Administrative Law Judge
United States Environmental Protection Agency’

Dated: May 15, 2008
Washington, D.C.

" The Administrative Law Judges of the United States Environmental Protection Agency
are authorized to hear cases pending before the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development, pursuant to an Interagency Agreement effective for a period beginning March 12,
2008.




